




 

 

 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Milton Selectboard 
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director of Administration & Community Affairs  
 
RE: General Standard Congressional Medal of Honor Posthumous Award 
 
DATE:  April 4, 2016 
 
Information from an email sent to me by Town Historian James Ballard:  
 
“The Stannard House Committee, is leading an effort to preserve and restore the Milton 
Home of Vermont's famous Civil War General J. Stannard. It is also seeking to have the 
Medal of Honor awarded posthumously to Civil War General George Jerrison Stannard. His 
leadership in ordering the 13th, 14th, 16th Vermont regiments to perform flanking 
maneuvers with firing action during Pickett's Charge that took place on the third day of the 
Battle of Gettysburg 1863. The Vermonters moved in the midst of battle as if they 
were doing a mere practice. The Vermonters fired with such force it shattered the 
Confederate ranks ending any hope of Confederate victory. Major General Abner 
Doubleday said: It is to General Stannard…that the country is mainly indebted for the 
repulse of the enemy’s charge and the final victory of July 3. [His] brilliant flank 
movement… greatly contributed to if it did not completely insure our final success."   
 
General Stannard's leadership at a critical moment of the Battle ensured a Union Victory 
that ultimately led to saving the United States.  
 
The Stannard House Committee is asking the Selectboard of Milton if it would consider 
passing a resolution supporting our efforts to seek the Medal of Honor for 
General Stannard.. 
 
Kate Cadreact and Jim Ballard are leading the Stannard Committee through the Medal of 
Honor Process. This not a resolution requesting financial aid.  We have a Stannard relative 
supporting the effort, which is a requirement. A resolution from the Vermont Legislature is 
also being sought.” 
 
I recommend that the Selectboard support this action.  
 



RESOLUTION 
Town of Milton Selectboard  

 
 

 
WHEREAS, Milton is proud to call itself the former home of Civil War Union Army 
General George Jerrison Stannard; and 
 
WHEREAS, General Stannard’s leadership in ordering the 13th, 14th, 16th Vermont 
regiments to perform flanking maneuvers with firing action during Pickett's Charge 
that took place on the third day of the Battle of Gettysburg 1863  shattered the 
Confederate ranks, thus ending any hope of Confederate victory in the decisive Civil 
War Battle; and 
 
WHEREAS, The General Stannard House Restroration Committee is seeking to attain a 
a Posthumous Award of the Congressional Medal of Honor to General Stannard. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Milton Selectboard recognizes the 
outstanding leadership and bravery of General Stannard in a pivotal Civil War battle, 
and voices its strong support to award the General with the Congressional Medal of 
Honor posthumously.   
 
 
Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 
 
SELECTBOARD 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair  

 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett,  Clerk John Cushing 

 
_______________________________ 
John Palasik 

 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _____________, 2016 

 
Attestation: ___________________________________________ 



































Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 1 4/1/16 11:06 AM 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:   Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 
FROM:   Chief Brett Van Noordt 
DATE:   March 18, 2016 
SUBJECT:  Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers (amended 04/01/16) 
 
Since the two retirements and one resignation in 2015, we have hired three (3) officers. 
One completed the police academy and is still working for us and the other two signed and 
agreed to their letters of hire, but months later had a change of heart and said they no 
longer wanted to be in law enforcement. 
 
We have polygraphed around seven other potential police candidates and interviewed over 
40 potential police candidates. Since early 2015, we have not been able to successfully fill 
our two open slots.  
 
Hundreds of hours have been spent and wasted in this hiring process. Hundreds of dollars 
have been spent on polygraphs and overtime to conduct background investigations.  
 
From the information we gathered (below) you will see that different police agencies 
around the State of Vermont are offering varying amounts of money to new officers. They 
either reward for higher education or for being full time certified.  
 
We are having a very hard time finding qualified people that want to be police officers. We 
are asking that the Selectboard allow the Town Manager to approve a sign on bonus for 
new police officers to help attract quality police candidates.  
 
The cost to send a person through the police academy would be $22,000 (See the chart of 
expenses on the last page). By not sending an officer through the Police academy, we will 
save an estimated $12,000 in wages and benefits. This does not include the cost of health 
insurance because we don’t know if the new officer will be on the family plan, 2-person plan 
or single plan. We would suggest: 
 
 
 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 2 4/1/16 11:06 AM 

 
 

o $8,000 sign on bonus for out of state certified officers with a relocation 
allocation of up to $2,000 (to be issued on a reimbursement basis for actual 
costs). The Town will look at advertising in newspapers and municipal 
services websites in new Hampshire, Massachusetts and eastern NY. 

 
o $10,000 sign on bonus for in state certified police officers. We will focus 

additional advertising on the Rutland Herald and the Brattleboro Reformer 
and an advertisement on the radio. 

 
o Both of the above stated advertisements will be placed in our typical news 

vehicles as well. 
 
Rationale for these two options:  By incentivizing the immediate benefit to out of state 
candidates via the relocation expense contribution, we might get someone who is in a 
larger department who is not foreseeing a rapid opportunity to rise through the ranks, or, 
we might find an officer that is 10 years from retirement that would consider relocating to 
Milton in anticipation of that circumstance who sees being in Chittenden County as a 
benefit.   
 
We would also suggest that the payments be made over a period of two years. 25% after 6 
months, 25% after 12 months, 25% after 18 months and the remaining amount at 24 
months. 
 
A $3,000 sign on bonus for a Part-Time certified officer should not be ruled out. As well as 
some kind of incentive for education, but not both. The $1,000 would be paid after 60 days, 
$1,000 after 6 months and the final $1,000 after 9 months. 
 
We have no certified officers that have been hired within the last two years. The Police 
Department budget can support these incentive bonuses. 
 

 
 
St. Albans Police Department 
Up to $3,500.00 Signing Bonus (For Certified Police Officers) 
 
 
 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 3 4/1/16 11:06 AM 

 
 
Springfield Police Department 
Successful applicants who are fully certified police officers by the State of Vermont prior to 
working for the town are eligible for employment bonuses up to $6,000.00 and a salary that 
reflects their qualifications within an established pay scale. 
 
UVM Police Services 
Up to $6,000 signing bonus 
 
Wilmington Police Department 
A hiring bonus of $5,000 is available for applicants who are already full-time certified in 
Vermont, or $2,500 for officers with Vermont part-time certification that are able to meet 
the requirements and attend the next available full-time academy class. 
 
Burlington Police Department 
Starting salary ranges from $46,016 - $56,576 per year depending upon experience  
Education incentives: annual bonus of $400 for an Associate’s Degree, $800 for a Bachelor’s 
Degree, and $1200 for a Master’s Degree  
 
Colchester PD 
$5000 for VT certified 
Half paid in completion of field training  
Half paid when probation ends (one year) 
 
Williston PD 
No sign on bonus 
 
South Burlington PD 
“Up to $7,500” sign on bonus for any full-time Vermont certified officer. 
 
Essex PD 
No sign on bonus 
 
UVM PD 
Range is $3,000 to $6,000 (Depending on Qualifications) 

 
 
 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 4 4/1/16 11:06 AM 

 
 
The following law enforcement agencies are all looking to hire at least one police officer: 

 Bennington Police Department: Police Officer 

 Berlin Police Department:  Full-Time Police Officer Part-Time Police Officer 

 Brandon Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer and Part-Time Police Officer 

 Brattleboro Police Department Full-Time Police Officer and Dispatcher 

 Burlington Police Department: Full Time Police Officer 

 Chittenden County Sheriff's Department: Full-Time & Part-Time Deputy  

 Essex Police Department: Patrol Officer 

 Hardwick Police Department: Part-Time Police Officer  

 Hartford Police Department: Police Officer  

 Manchester Police Department: Part-Time Police Officer 

 Middlebury Police Department: Full-Time Officer 

 Milton Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Morristown Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Newport Police Department: Part-Time Police Officer 

 Norwich Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Orange County Sheriff Office: Part-Time Officer   

 Randolph Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Richmond Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Rutland City Police Department: Police Officer 

 Rutland County Sheriff's Department: Part-Time Police Officer 

 St. Albans Police Department: Full-Time Police Officers 

 South Burlington Police Department: Police Officer 

 Springfield Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer 

 Stowe Police Department:  Part-Time Police officer 

 UVM Police Services: Full-Time Police Officer & Police Sergeant 

 Vergennes Police Department: Part-Time Police Officer 

 Vermont Police Academy: Law Enforcement & Certification Training Coordinator AC 

 Vermont State Police: Trooper 

 Washington County Sheriff's Department: Part-Time/Per Diem Deputy Sheriff 

http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#BenningtonPD
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#BerlinPD
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#BerlinPD
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#BErlinPT
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Brandon
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Brandon
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Brattleboro
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Burlington
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#BurlingtonFT
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#colchester
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Essex Police Department
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Hardwick
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Hart
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Manchester
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Middle Br
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Milton
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Morristown
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#newport
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Norwich
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Orange
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Randolph
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Richmond Police Department
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Rutland City
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#RCSD
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#St Albans
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#SouthBurlington
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Springfield
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Stowe
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#UVM
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#UVM
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#vergennes
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Vermont Police Academy
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#VSP
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Washington


Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 5 4/1/16 11:06 AM 

 Williston Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer  

 Wilmington Police Department: Full-Time Police Officer Part-Time Patrol Officer 

 Windham County Sheriff's Department: Multiple opportunities 

 US Customs & Border Protection: Agent Careers 

 

Current Hourly Rate of Pay $19.79  

Hours Per Week 40 

Weekly Pay $791.60  

19 Weeks at the Academy $15,040.40  

4 Weeks More of FTO $3,166.40  

Social Security $1,392.82  

Retirement $1,793.37  

Life Insurance $2.28  

Worker's Comp $981.35  

Total (without Health Ins.) $22,376.62  
 

http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Williston PD
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Wilmington
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#Wilmington
http://vcjtc.vermont.gov/about-us/employment#WindhamCSD
http://www.cbp.gov/xp/cgov/careers/customs_careers/border_careers/


 
 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  
 
 

 
FY 2017 VTrans Class II Highway Grant 

North Road Resurfacing and Reclamation 
 

Date: March 31, 2016 
 
On tonight’s agenda is a request for authorization to submit an application for the VTrans FY 17 Class 
2 Town Highway Grant due to VTrans on or before April 15th, 2016. The grant is a competitive 
application process and if awarded will provide funding for up to $175,000 toward a Class 2 Highway 
paving or reconstruction project.  
 
Dustin Keelty, Erik Wells and I engaged in a phone conversation with Stuart King on Wednesday, March 
30th to settle on priorities for summer/fall/spring paving and road reconstruction projects. Stuart is 
currently offering advice to the DPW and the Town Manager’s office on preliminary plans for the road 
and highway workplans as we attempt to organize a schedule of work subsequent to the loss of Roger 
Hunt as DPW Director.   All present were in agreement with Stu’s recommendation that the Town 
tackle segments of North Road, Middle Road and Sanderson Road from late summer 2016 through 
June 20017.   
 
Given the aforementioned projects, our internal team recommends North Road be the focus of Milton’s 
application for the FY 17 Class 2 Town Highway Grant Application. The condition and use qualifies well 
for the grant award.  
 
Resurfacing and the Full Depth Reclamation (FDR) of approximately 4,000 feet between Husky Drive and 
Cooper Road is estimated to be $400,000.  This cost may grow as Dustin inspects and provides 
information on: the number of culverts, their condition, length, diameter, and size, along with how 
many are set less than 2” from the top of pavement.  Additionally, Stu has asked us to identify needed 
ditching.  For the purposes of the grant application, we are identifying the presently estimated cost 
noted above for the grant application. 
 

 
The following information represents compelling information to be included in our grant application:   

• North Road is ranked with the highest priority in the Pavement Preservation and Rehabilitation 
Plan.  

• The portion of North Road identified in our Pavement Preservation and Rehabilitation Plan as 
Segment B is between Husky Drive and the rail crossing at Cooper Road. It ranks as very poor to 
serious condition and some sections are considered as failed. This segment will require Full 
Depth Reclamation between Shotwell Road and the rail crossing. 
 

As well, additional segments of North Road also show adverse conditions which should increase 
emphasis on the Town’s need for grant funding. The intersection with Main St., East & Westford Roads 
and ending at Husky Drive is in overall poor to very poor condition and is assessed at requiring a 1.5” 

Year Road Segment Location 
Description 

Maintenance 
Type 

2014 
PCI 

WPCI Length 
Feet 

Miles Cost 

17/17 North Rd North B Husky Rd. to 
Cooper FDR 

FDR 15 93.5 4320 0.818  $     400,000  



 

 

asphalt overlay.  Segment C is between the rail crossing and the Georgia town line. It is in poor to very 
poor condition.  
 
At present, since roadway conditions relating to the culverts, ditching, etc. have yet to be determined, 
we do not have an anticipated project start date.  We do, however, expect to complete this project 
before June 30, 2017. The Selectboard will be presented a more comprehensive view of the Town’s 
Road, Paving and Reclamation plans in the coming weeks, well in advance of notification of grant 
awards.  
 
The following documents are included in the application package: 
 
Town Highway Financial Plan. This document is required by Title 19 VSA Section 306(e) and insures the 
Town is spending greater than or equal to the State aid appropriation for maintenance on the Town’s 
roadways each year. It is also required in order to receive any grant money from the State. 
 
Certification of Compliance with Town Road and Bridge Standards. As a requirement of the VTrans Town 
Highway Program grants, the Town must certify that it complies with the Town Highway and Bridge 
Standards established by VTrans. While the January 2013 codes have already been certified by the 
Selectboard, the terms of the grant application require an updated certification annually. Failure to 
certify compliance with the standards reduces our grant funding by 10%. 
 
Fiscal Analysis:  
If the Grant is awarded, the Town would be reimbursed up to $175,000. The estimated cost for Segment 
B is $400,000. Given this estimate, the Town’s share would be $225,000, to be funded by the FY 17 
General Fund paving line item and the Road & Sidewalk Restoration Reserve Fund. The actual split will 
be determined upon receipt of the grant and prior to project construction.  
 
Recommended Action:  

• Approve the resolution certifying the Town Financial Plan and the Town’s compliance with the 
Vtrans Town Road and Bridge Standards.  

• Authorize the Town Manager to sign the necessary documents to submit the grant application 
for funding.   

Once the grant award is received, staff will bring an updated North Road Paving & Reconstruction 
Project Budget to the Selectboard with anticipated recommendations to: accept the grant, authorize the 
project budget, approve purchase orders and expend grant funds awarded by VTrans. 
 
Prepared By: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager. The Resolution is in the Board packet. The grant 
application is in the process of being written, reviewed and agreed upon by our DPW Team.  It will be 
submitted prior to the April 15th deadline.  The Selectboard is not required to sign the grant application, 
only the resolution authorizing the submittal, the Town Road & Bridge Standards Certification and 
Annual Financial Plan. 
 



Resolution 
                                                            TOWN OF MILTON 

 
FY 2017 VTrans Town Highway Financial Plan, Town Highway Class II Roadway Grant 

Application and Certification of Town Road and Bridge Standards Acceptance 
 

WHEREAS, The Milton Selectboard accepted Policy 96-01 requiring all grants, grant applications, and offer of 
grants to be approved by the Selectboard at any regular or special meeting of the Selectboard; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Milton annually submits to VTrans a Town Highway Financial Plan and Roadway 
grants; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Staff requests the Selectboard approve the application, expenditure, and Town Road and Bridge 
Standards Certification of Compliance for a grant from VTrans Town Highway Class II Roadway Grant Program 
for the reclamation and resurfacing of that portion of North Road South of Cooper to North of Husky Road; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Highway Class II Roadway Grant Program will reimburse up to $175,000 of the project 
cost for approved grant applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the grant program requires a 10% match in funds. Matching project funds for the grant would come 
from the ½ penny special tax assessment for highway improvements; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of the reconstruction project is currently estimated at $400,000.00 with the 
Town’s cost estimated to be $225,000.00 to be funded by the Highway Fund Paving line item and the Road & 
Sidewalk Restoration Reserve. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Selectboard approves the Annual Town Highway Financial Plan and 
Certifies Compliance with the Town Road and Bridge Standards. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, the Town Manager is authorized to sign the necessary documents to submit the 
grant application for funding, accept the grant, make necessary budget amendments and expend grant funds 
awarded by VTrans.  
 
Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 

MILTON SELECTBOARD 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson   Ken Nolan, Vice Chairperson  

 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett, Clerk    John Cushing      

_______________________________  
John Palasik     

  
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2016 
 
Attest: _______________________________________________________________   
                                                 Milton Town Clerk 







 

                                                                      

                                                    
                                             

State of Vermont Agency of Transportation 
Municipal Assistance Bureau Highway Division   

                                                                                                                                                   

 TO: Project File   
   
 FROM: Donna Barlow Casey, Milton Town Manage  
 
 DATE: April 4, 2016 
 
 SUBJECT: Complete Streets Compliance Form  

 
Act 34 became effective July 1, 2011 and requires that the needs of all transportation users, regardless of their age, ability, or preferred 
mode of transportation be considered in state and municipal transportation projects and project phases.  This project compliance form 
and attached checklists serve to document that Complete Streets practices and principles were considered and implemented where 
applicable for the project listed below.  This project compliance form (to be completed after preliminary plans) and attached checklists 
should be completed and retained in the project’s design file. 
 
Route: North Road, Milton, Vermont  Project Description: Road Reconstruction & Paving 
 
Compliance – If applicable, select all Complete Streets principles and practices that have been incorporated into the project. 
 

Sidewalks: installation, repair, ramps, railing, etc.  Pavement Improvements: replacement, repair, etc.  
Crosswalks: installation, repair, markings, etc.  Shoulder Improvements: widen with new pavement.  
Lighting: street or pedestrian scale.  Bike/Shared Use: paths, lanes, etc.  
Signals: pedestrian features.  Public Transit: bus stops, bus pullouts, kiosks, etc.  
Streetscaping: benches, bulbouts, landscaping,  Other: 4” Fog (Edge) lines will be added 

 
Exemption – If applicable, select one. 
 

The use of the transportation facility by pedestrians, bicyclists or other users is prohibited by law.  
The cost of incorporating complete streets principles is disproportionate to the need or probably use.  
Incorporating complete streets principles is outside the scope of the subject project due to its very nature.  

 
If any of the boxes under “Exemption” are checked please provide a short justification below: 

 
 
Non-Compliance – If none of the boxes under “Compliance” and “Exemption” are checked please draft and attach justification for 
not incorporating Complete Streets principles and practices into the project. 
 
 
Completed: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager   Date: 04/01/16 
    
 
 
Approved:_______________________________________   Date:_________________  
  Selectboard Chairperson  
 
 



 

“Once you've got 7 people in a 
group, each additional member 
reduces decision effectiveness 
by 10%.” 

- Decide & Deliver: 5 Steps to 
Breakthrough Performance in Your 
Organization (Harvard Business 
Press) 

“Evan Wittenberg, director of the 
Wharton Graduate Leadership 
Program, notes that team size is 
“not necessarily an issue people 
think about immediately, but it is 
important.” According to 
Wittenberg, while the research on 
optimal team numbers is “not 
conclusive, it does tend to fall into 
the five to 12 range, though some 
say five to nine is best, and the 
number six has come up a few 
times.” 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  
 
 

 
Inter-municipal Collaboration Task Force  

 
Date: April 1, 2016 
 
On the upcoming Selectboard agenda is an item focused on the first of three Task Forces I 
recommended creating during the FY 2017 Budget process. My goal would be for the Selectboard to 
appoint the members of the Inter-Municipal Task Force at the May2 meeting. 
 
Over-arching Concept 
A task force is a small group of people that brings together 
a specific set of skills to accomplish a short term task.  A 
task force exists for a limited amount of time, typically a 
few months to no more than a year.  
 
I see each of the three Task Forces as having membership 
that includes Town Staff, citizen appointments, and one ex 
officio Selectboard member.  Each Task Force would be comprised of a different group of individuals.   

 
Research suggests that the ideal number for committee 
membership is 5-9 people.  There should be a short 
description of work, a clear set of goals identified and 
agreed upon by the Selectboard, and deliverables identified.  
Some organizations describe these items in what is referred 
to as the Task Force Charter.  (See attached for Milton’s 
Inter-municipal Task Force.)  
 
Recommended Action:  

• Consider and offer comment on the Inter-municipal 
Task Force Charter.  (Selectboard meeting of 04/04/16) 

• Authorize the Town Manager to advertise the 
volunteer positions available to residents, and receive and 
review applicants in preparation for appointment by the 

Selectboard (Selectboard meeting of 05/02/16) 
• Extend an official invitation to the School District to identify a team to participate in 

discussions with the Town. (Anticipated onset of discussion week of 05/16/16) 
 

• Prepared By: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager.   Inter-municipal Task Force Charter 
attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://hbr.org/product/decide-and-deliver-five-steps-to-breakthrough-perf/an/12035-HBK-ENG?cm_mmc=email-_-newsletter-_-daily_stat-_-stat092810&referral=00204&utm_source=newsletter_daily_stat&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=stat092810
http://hbr.org/product/decide-and-deliver-five-steps-to-breakthrough-perf/an/12035-HBK-ENG?cm_mmc=email-_-newsletter-_-daily_stat-_-stat092810&referral=00204&utm_source=newsletter_daily_stat&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=stat092810
http://hbr.org/product/decide-and-deliver-five-steps-to-breakthrough-perf/an/12035-HBK-ENG?cm_mmc=email-_-newsletter-_-daily_stat-_-stat092810&referral=00204&utm_source=newsletter_daily_stat&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=stat092810


 

 

  

 
 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT 
 

 

Milton 2016 Inter-Municipal Collaboration Task Force  
 
PURPOSE:  The Town of Milton is interested in achieving economies of scale and cost savings 
within its normal operations without negatively impacting the quality of its work, levels of 
customer service or timeliness of service delivery.  The Selectboard and the Town’s management 
staff believe it may be possible to achieve this goal through establishing collaborative 
agreements with other municipal entities. As examples, Milton has enjoyed a long history of 
success with efforts such as providing financial services to the Milton School District and the 
sharing of equipment with surrounding communities. 
 
STRUCTURE: The Inter-Municipal Task Force will be comprised of a minimum of 5 and no more 
than 9 members.  It is anticipated that at least half of the members will change each time the 
Town completes one set of negotiations and moves onto a new discussion, which may be with a 
different municipality.   Half of the members are to be appointed by the Selectboard; half to be 
identified by the municipal entity invited to join the conversation by the Selectboard.  In 
addition, there will be an Ex Officio member of the Selectboard (who will not be expected to 
attend all meetings.) 
 

1. Town Manager 
2. Finance Director 
3. Staff manager from relevant department (authorization delegated to TM) 
4. Resident 
Members from other municipal entity 
5.  
6.  
7.  
8.  

 
ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES of this Task Force:   
The Task force is charged with seeking economies of scale and cost savings as noted in the 
above stated purpose.  It is the responsibility of the Town Task Force members to negotiate in 
good faith with the municipalities with whom the Town is interested in potentially establishing 
an inter-municipal agreement.   
 
It is anticipated that the Town Task Force will lead the initial process, and serve in an ongoing 
capacity as the facilitator of meetings throughout the term of the discussions.  At the outset of 
each different negotiation, the Town will commence its first meeting with an effort to: 
determine meeting procedures; define a process for distributing information and resources to 
members; establish the expectations of the group (i.e., attendance, assignments, etc.); identify 
the resources within the group; fill roles (convener, recorder, researcher, etc.); and, identify 
specific tasks, target dates for completion and potentially budgetary items. 



 

 

 
Notes/minutes will be taken and provided to the Selectboard via inclusion in the packets 
distributed by the TM Office for regularly scheduled Selectboard meetings. 
 
The Task Force will present a draft agreement to the Selectboard for consideration, or report on 
why an agreement was unable to be reached. 
 
As one negotiation concludes, the Town Task Force members have may choose to provide the 
Selectboard with recommendations for additional negotiations with other municipalities. 
 
TASKS and EXPECTED WORK PRODUCTS:   

• Suggested areas of collaboration for discussion 
• Written updates/notes/minutes from meetings to Selectboard 
• Appearance before the Selectboard to explain progress and/or proposed agreements 
• Draft documents outlining proposed agreements for Selectboard consideration 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE:  The work of this Task Force with appointments and conclude no later than 
the end of Fiscal Year 2017.  It is expected that the Task Force will negotiate with several 
different external municipal entities for different agreements.  As a result, it’s anticipated that 
the discussions with various municipal entities will differ in terms of time and content.  
 
RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO TASK FORCE:  Meeting space will be made available to the Task 
Force.   



Selectboard Goals 2016/17 
 

1. Finances 
a. Continue Restructuring of TIF, Impact Fees, Capital Reserve, grants, reserve funds, (all 

funds) 
i. What don’t we still know? 

ii. Develop understanding 
iii. Provide certainty  

b. Permanent finance officer  
c. Find revenue – reduce property tax burden 
d. Explore new strategic grant potential 
e. Present total cost/ department benchmarks 

 
2. Staffing Improvement Plan 

a. Look at long-term staffing issues – Task Force 
b. Improve customer service/ outcome 
c. Find efficiencies 
d. Professional Development/ right tools for the job 
e. Restructure where necessary 
f. Partnership with school 
g. Consolidation/ Contracting/ Privatization 
h. Revisit Administrative Code 

 
3. Capital Improvement Plan 

a. Continue reconstruction 
i. More attention to financial impact/ consequences 

ii. Easy to read/ easy to use/ clarity 
iii. Restructure Impact Fees 
iv. Capital Reserve Fund 
v. TIF issues 

vi. Grant issues 
b. Improved project management 
c. Determine better long-term strategy 
d. Incorporate Paving Plan 

i. Take the lead  
e. Uses of the Bombardier property 
f. Expansion needs/ rehab/ better fit for needs 
g. Develop a better understanding of technology issues 

 
 
 
 
 



Selectboard Goals 2016/17 
 

4. Economic Development 
a. Determine goal 
b. Consultant/ Recruiter 

i. Someone to maximize development opportunities 
ii. Work with stakeholders to include Husky and GBIC 

iii. Develop a win/win strategy 
 

5. Legislation 
a. Introduce legislation/ instead of just a topical conversation 

 
6. Public Feed Back 

a. Develop better understanding of citizens needs and vision of the future 
 

 





























 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 4         March 21, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
March 21, 2016 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; 5 
John Cushing, Member; John Palasik, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Erik Wells, Director- Administration & 8 
Community Affairs; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; Nathan Lavallee, Water/Wastewater 9 
Superintendent; Dustin Keelty, Public Works Supervisor   10 
 11 
Others Present: Courtney Lamdin, Jenn Taylor, Terry Melton, Mary Thompson 12 
 13 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:25 PM 14 
 15 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  16 

 17 
III. Agenda Review- None 18 

 19 
IV. Public Forum- None  20 

 21 
V. Appointments 22 

A. Community Champions Award Committee Appointment 23 
Bartlett moved to appoint Richard Castine to the Community Champions Award 24 
Committee to a term ending in August 2016. Second by Palasik.  25 

 26 
B. Chittenden Solid Waste District 27 

Cushing moved to appoint Town Manager Donna Barlow Casey as the representative to 28 
the Chittenden Solid Waste District and Director of Administration Erik Wells as the 29 
alternate. Second by Palasik. Approved unanimously.  30 
 31 

VI. New Business and Department Items 32 
A. Update on Solar Projects 33 

  Wells was joined by Jesse Stowell of Sun Edison. Wells provided an overview of the  34 
  process for the solar projects to date, from RFP in 2014 to contract award to project  35 
  development that began in fall 2015. Stowell explained during development Sun Edison  36 
  rendered a decision that the southern uncapped portion of the landfill presented too  37 
  many risk factors for development and that portion of the project would not proceed.  38 
  On the northern capped section, Green Mountain Power has restricted the sizing of the  39 
  project to 500 kW. The net metering cap was also met last November, which has  40 
  prevented this project from being able to utilize the power purchase agreement   41 
  negotiated last summer. The net metering rules are being revised for this summer, and  42 
  to move this project forward it will fall under the new net metering rules. For the  43 
  community solar project at the wastewater plant the same issue is at play with the net  44 
  metering cap being met. The project application will need to be submitted under the  45 
  new net metering rules this summer for an anticipated sizing of 200 – 300 kW for the  46 
  array. There is also the option to enter a lottery for a 150 kW array using the old net  47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 4         March 21, 2016 
 

  metering rules that had higher benefit rates. If the Town is selected in the lottery it can  48 
  back out of that size project it is chooses. The Board will decide on the lottery entry in  49 
  April and wait until the new net metering rules are finalized before deciding on how to  50 
  proceed to the project on the former Town landfill. 51 
 52 

B. New Police Officer Signing Bonus Incentive 53 
Police Chief Brett Van Noordt explained there are currently two open positions for 54 
patrol officers in Milton PD. Filling these positions have been a challenge. Over 40 55 
applicants have been interviewed. Two individuals accepted the jobs, but then decided 56 
to pursue other opportunities. There are a lot of openings for police officers in Vermont 57 
and filling the positions is a challenge for a number of agencies. Van Noordt is proposing 58 
a sign on bonus incentive for certified PT and FT officers and college graduates (mutually 59 
exclusive) at $2,000 and $4,000 thresholds. After discussion, the Board asked for further 60 
information about cost benefit for uncertified applicants to attend the Academy and to 61 
explore offering a further amount for pre-certified officers. Discussion also covered how 62 
the bonus would be paid out in installments to prevent someone from being hired, 63 
taking the complete bonus, and then leaving shortly thereafter. Discussion will continue 64 
at a future meeting. 65 
 66 

C. Water Leak Update 67 
Barlow Casey provided an update that progress had been made to identify the source of 68 
the water leak. It is occurring somewhere between the Champlain Water District meter 69 
and households, users are not paying more than they should be. She shared a table that 70 
showed water loss rates increasing from 11 to 45 percent over time. There is always 71 
some amount of loss in a water system. Superintendent Nate Lavallee said that 30 72 
gallons per minute of the loss has been identified since January. The Champlain Water 73 
District meter is being tested and that may account for some of the recorded loss, if so 74 
adjustments and credits would be made. The Towns of Hinesburg and Rutland 75 
experienced problems like this in previous years that took awhile to isolate the source. 76 
Staff from the Champlain Water District and the Town of Williston and City of South 77 
Burlington are assisting. Valves are being turned at night to help isolate the area. Vacant 78 
buildings have been identified and eliminated as causes. A UVM Professor is planning to 79 
assist and take a class to use a radar system to explore Maplewood Ave. area. Work will 80 
continue to identify the issue.  81 
 82 

D. Vermont Renewable Energy Project Siting Resolution 83 
Cushing moved to adopt the Resolution as presented. Second by Bartlett. Approved 84 
unanimously. 85 
 86 

E. Set Date for Next Selectboard Meeting 87 
Decided this item was no longer necessary for agendas. Meeting occur first and third 88 
Mondays of month. 89 
 90 

VII. Manager’s Report 91 
 Barlow Casey said the landfill entrances have been posted by Public Works for no ATV 92 
 travel allowed. The Board asked Dustin Keelty about results of the borings at Beebe Hill 93 
 Road – results have not been returned to the Town yet. 94 

 95 
 96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 4         March 21, 2016 
 

VIII. Warrant/Report #20 97 
 Bartlett reviewed warrant #20. He mentioned a few items, in random order: 98 
 99 

• Cives Corporation, $929.68 - repair LCD screens on 2006 & 2008 dump trucks 100 
• Landworks, $25,827.58 - Milton 4D project.  Includes pass through of two "subcontractors" - 101 

$11,183.86 for Dubois & King and $2,615.00 for Hartgen Archeological Associates.  Note 102 
from Erik all proceeding within approved contract amount. 103 

• Northwestern Occupation Health (Georgia Walk-In Clinic), $999 - rabies shots for MPD 104 
officers (proactive). 105 

• Tri-Sales, Inc, $4,403.28 - replenish stock of water meters (4- 1" meters and 12 5/8" meters 106 
 107 
Bartlett moved to approve warrant report #20 in the amount of $120,347.06, second by 108 
Nolan. Approved unanimously. 109 

 110 
IX. Minutes of March 7 and March 14 Meetings 111 

Bartlett moved to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2016 and March 14, 2016 112 
Selectboard meetings as presented. Cushing second. Approved unanimously. 113 

 114 
 Executive Session 115 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Contract Negotiations and Real 116 
Estate would cause the Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.   Second by Nolan. 117 
Approved unanimously.  118 
  119 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Contract Negotiations under the 120 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey. Second by Nolan.  Approved 121 
unanimously. 122 
 123 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Real Estate under the provisions of 124 
V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey and Planning Director Jacob Hemmerick. 125 
Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously. 126 
 127 
Bartlett moved to close Executive Session at   9:45 PM.  Second by Palasik. Approved  128 
unanimously.  129 
 130 
Bartlett moved to adopt the resolution authorizing the Town Manager to execute a quit claim 131 
deed that releases Glebe Land fee simple interests on the property of David J. and Katherine D. 132 
Cadreact in order to grant development rights to the Vermont Land Trust. Second by Nolan. 133 
Approved 4-1 (Cushing opposed).  134 
 135 

X. Adjournment 136 
 137 
Bartlett moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Palasik. Approved unanimously. 138 
 139 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 9:48 PM.  140 
   141 

 142 
 143 
 144 
 145 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 4         March 21, 2016 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 146 
 147 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 148 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 149 
 150 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 151 
 152 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          153 


	SB Meeting Packet 4.4.16
	Signed Agenda 4.4.16
	MEMO, Stannard Resolution
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	Resolution General Stannard Medal of Honor
	Freedom Fest 06.25.16
	car show entertainment license
	Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers
	Analysis FY17 VTrans Class 2 Grant_NorthRoad
	ResolutionFY17 VTrans Class 2 Grant ApplicationNorth Road (2)
	Resolution

	Cert of Compliance Town Road and Bridges
	AnnualFinancialPlan2016 2017
	LTF Complete Streets Project Compliance Form v2007
	Municipal Assistance Bureau Highway Division

	InterMunic Task Force Analysis
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT

	SB Goals 2016
	Warrant 20
	supplemental warrant
	SB Minutes 3.21.16 Draft

	car show entertainment license
	SB Meeting Packet 4.4.16
	Signed Agenda 4.4.16
	MEMO, Stannard Resolution
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	Resolution General Stannard Medal of Honor
	Freedom Fest 06.25.16
	car show entertainment license
	Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers
	Analysis FY17 VTrans Class 2 Grant_NorthRoad
	ResolutionFY17 VTrans Class 2 Grant ApplicationNorth Road (2)
	Resolution

	Cert of Compliance Town Road and Bridges
	AnnualFinancialPlan2016 2017
	LTF Complete Streets Project Compliance Form v2007
	Municipal Assistance Bureau Highway Division

	InterMunic Task Force Analysis
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT

	SB Goals 2016
	Warrant 20
	supplemental warrant
	SB Minutes 3.21.16 Draft


